Public Document Pack

Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-
Committee

Thursday, 11th May, 2017
at 9.30 am
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Conference Room 3 - Civic
Centre

This meeting is open to the public

Members

Three Members drawn from the Licensing
Committee

Contacts

Democratic Support Officer

Pat Wood

Tel: 023 8083 2302

Email: pat.wood@southampton.gov.uk

Service Director - Transactions & Universal
Services

Mitch Sanders

Tel: 023 8083 3613
Email: mitch.sanders@southampton.gov.uk



mailto:pat.wood@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mitch.sanders@southampton.gov.uk

PUBLIC INFORMATION

The Members of the Licensing Committee are Councillors J Baillie, Blatchford, Bogle, B Harris,
Furnell, Jordan, Lewzey, Painton, Parnell and D Thomas.

Terms of Reference

The Sub-Committee deals with
licences for which the Council is
responsible under the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005,
including:-

e Determination of applications for
review of premises licences and
club premises certificates;
o Determination of representations to
applications for premises licences
and club premises certificates,
variations and various permits;
o Determination of police objections
to applications for:
¢ Variation of designated
premises supervisors

e Transfer of premises licences

e Personal licences for the sale of
alcohol

o Determination of objections to
temporary event notices.

Relevant Representations

Those who have made relevant

representations may address the

meeting about the matter in which they
have an interest. New matters, not
raised within a written representation,
can not be relied upon at the hearing.

When dealing with Licensing Act

matters the Sub-Committee must

only take into account the following
statutory Licensing Objectives:-

e prevention of crime and disorder

e public safety

e prevention of public nuisance

e protection of children from harm

Likewise, when dealing with

Gambling Act matters the Sub

Committee must only take into

account the statutory Licensing

Objectives below:-

e Preventing gambling from being a
source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or
being used to support crime

e Ensuring that gambling is
conducted in a fair and open way,
and

¢ Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling

Southampton City Council’s Priorities
e Jobs for local people
e Prevention and early intervention
e Protecting vulnerable people
e Affordable housing
e Services for all
e City pride
e A sustainable Council

Fire Procedure:- In the event of a fire or other
emergency a continuous alarm will sound and you will
be advised by Council officers what action to take.

Access:- Access is available for disabled people.
Please contact the Democratic Support Officer who will
help to make any necessary arrangements.

Smoking policy:- The Council operates a no-smoking
policy in all civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your mobile
telephones to silent whilst in the meeting

Use of Social Media:- The Council supports the video
or audio recording of meetings open to the public, for
either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the
Chair’s opinion, a person filming or recording a meeting
or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s Standing
Orders the person can be ordered to stop their activity,
or to leave the meeting.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to
being recorded and to the use of those images and
recordings for broadcasting and or/training purposes.
The meeting may be recorded by the press or members
of the public.

Any person or organisation filming, recording or
broadcasting any meeting of the Council is responsible
for any claims or other liability resulting from them doing
SO.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the recording of
meetings is available on the Council’s website.

Dates of Potential Meetings Municipal Year
2016/17

Meetings are scheduled on a weekly basis usually
at 6pm on a Wednesday evening.



CONDUCT OF MEETING

Terms of Reference Business to be discussed

The terms of reference are contained in Only those items listed on the attached

the Council’s Constitution. agenda may be considered at this meeting.
Rules of Procedure Quorum 3

The meeting is governed by the The minimum number of appointed Members
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) required to be in attendance to hold the
Regulations 2005 and the Council meeting is 3.

Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of
the Constitution, so far as it is applicable.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or
wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:
(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

(ii) Sponsorship:

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton
City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the
you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under
which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has
not been fully discharged.

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
Southampton for a month or longer.
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge)
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:
a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body, or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value
of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial
interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an ‘Other Interest’ in any
membership of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy
Principles of Decision Making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

e proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);

e due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

e respect for human rights;

e a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;

e setting out what options have been considered;

e setting out reasons for the decision; and

e clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e |eave out of account irrelevant considerations;
e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual
basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward
funding are unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



AGENDA

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

To appoint a Chair for the purposes of this meeting.

2 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance
with the Licensing Act 2003.

3 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

4 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING) (Pages
1-6)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March
2017 and 5 April 2017 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues.
The parties to the hearing, press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, will be invited to return immediately
following that private session at which time the matter will be determined and the
decision of the Sub-Committee will be announced.

7 APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - TONY'S KEBAB
CENTRE, SITE AT SPEEDWELL HOUSE, WEST QUAY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON
S015 1GZ (Pages 7 - 34)

Application for grant of a premises licence in respect of Tony's Kebab Centre, Site at
Speedwell House, West Quay Road, Southampton SO15 1GZ, attached.

8 APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE - BITTERNE EXPRESS, 27
ST. CATHERINES ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO18 1LL (Pages 35 - 80)

Application for a review of the premises licence in respect of Bitterne Express, 27 St.
Catherines Road, Southampton SO18 1LL, attached.

Wednesday, 3 May 2017 SERVICE DIRECTOR, LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE






Agenda Iltem 5

Minutes of Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee meetings:

e 30 March 2017
e 5 April 2017

Page 1



SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 MARCH 2017

Present: Councillors J Baillie, Jordan and Painton

36.

37.

38.

39.

ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED that Councillor Painton be elected as chair for the purposes of this
meeting.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 26 January 2017 be approved
and signed as a correct record.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED that in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005 that the parties to the hearing, press and public be excluded at a
predetermined point whilst the Sub-Committee reaches its decision.

APPLICATION FOR A VARIATION OF THE PREMISES LICENCE TO SPECIFY AN
INDIVIDUAL AS DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR - SMOKE AND MIRRORS, 3-4
VERNON WALK, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 2EJ

The Sub-Committee were advised that the applicant would not be attending the
meeting. Both Hampshire Constabulary and the Councils Licensing Officers had
made several attempts contact the applicant, by phone, email and visits and that the
applicant had not made a response indicating their attendance at the meeting.

-28-

Page 2



The Sub-Committee waited until 18:10 to determine if the applicant would be present
at the meeting.

The Sub-Committee considered the application for a variation of the premises
licence to specify an individual as Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of
Smoke and Mirrors, 3-4 Vernon Walk, Southampton SO15 2EJ.

PC2703 Brian Swallow (Police) was present and with the consent of the Chair
addressed the meeting.

The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance
with the Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

RESOLVED that the application for a variation of the premises licence to specify an
individual as Designated Premises Supervisor be refused.

After private deliberation the Sub-Committee reconvened and the Chair read out the
following decision:-

All parties will receive formal written confirmation of the decision and reasons.

The Sub-Committee has considered very carefully the application to vary a premises
licence to specify an individual as designated premises licence holder at Smoke and
Mirrors, 3-4 Vernon Walk, Southampton. It has given due regard to the Licensing Act
2003, the Licensing Objectives, statutory guidance and the adopted statement of
Licensing Policy. Human Rights Legislation has been borne in mind whilst making
this decision.

All the evidence presented both written and given orally today, has been carefully
considered and taken into account. The Sub-Committee particularly addressed itself
to the crime prevention licensing objective.

In the absence of the applicant the Sub-Committee was required to determine
whether to proceed with the hearing (in accordance with Regulation 20 of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

After having heard that repeated attempts had been made to contact the applicant in
relation to the application including telephone calls and the personal service of
documents and after having waited 10 minutes for the applicant to attend it was
decided that the hearing should proceed in the applicant’s absence.

After having heard evidence from the police it was determined that the application be
refused.

-29-

Page 3



Reasons

The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the police confirming concerns about the
nature of the area in which the premises is located. The area is formally designated
as a Cumulative Impact Policy area suffering from stress issues.

The premises have been trading past their permitted hours in breach of the premises
licence and in breach of planning legislation. Intelligence suggested that the
previous DPS was not in day to day control of the premises. The current DPS shows
no record of having worked within Hampshire or the Isle of Wight in their capacity as
a personal licence holder or DPS. The premises was described as a late night
vertical drinking establishment and located within the CIP as such as premises that
would require strong leadership and management, particularly given recent breaches
of the licence. Accordingly, the Sub-Committee find that there would be a
considerable risk to the crime prevention objective if the application were granted.

The Sub-Committee considers refusal in this instance to be both appropriate and
proportionate.

There is a right of appeal for all parties to the Magistrates’ Court. Formal notification
of the decision will set out that right in full.

-30-

Page 4



SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 APRIL 2017

Present: Councillors Mrs Blatchford, Bogle and Furnell

40.

41.

42.

ELECTION OF CHAIR

Councillor Blatchford was elected as chair.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED that in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005 that the parties to the hearing, press and public be excluded at a
predetermined point whilst the Sub-Committee reaches its decision.

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - ATTITUDE CUSTOM CYCLES
LTD, 2-4 STONEHAM LANE, SOUTHAMPTON SO16 2NL

The Sub-Committee heard legal advice in relation to s.176 of the Licensing At 2003 and the impact
upon a premises licence, if granted, to garage premises. The applicant agreeing that there was no
issue as to primary use (no use of the premises other than that of a garage is asserted) decided that
the best option was to withdraw the application.

RESOLVED Application withdrawn

-31-

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

DECISION-MAKER LICENSING (LICENSING & GAMBLING) SUB COMMITTEE

SUBJECT

DATE OF
HEARING
REPORT OF

E-mail

Application Date :

Application Valid

HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A
PREMISES LICENCE -

TONY’S KEBAB CENTRE, SITE AT SPEEDWELL HOUSE, WEST
QUAY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 1GZ

THURSDAY 11 MAY 2017 - 09:30 hrs

SERVICE DIRECTOR — TRANSACTIONS & UNIVERSAL SERVICES

licensing@southampton.gov.uk
17 MARCH 2017 Application Received 17 MARCH 2017

17 MARCH 2017 Reference : 2017/00969/01SPRN

N\
<

Camival House

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679

Representations from Responsible Authorities

Responsible Authority Satisfactory?

Children Services YES

Hampshire Fire And Rescue No Response Received
Environmental Health YES

Planning & Sustainability No Response Received
Public Health No Response Received
Hampshire Constabulary YES

Trading Standards

No Response Received

Page 7
Page 1 of 27



mailto:licensing@southampton.gov.uk

Contributor Type

Name Address

Mr. Alex Jackson |General Manager, Richmond Hyundai Southampton Trader
West Quay Road, Southampton SO15 1GY

Legal Implications

1.

The legislation specifically restricts the grounds on which the sub-committee may refuse an
application for grant of a premises licence, or impose conditions. The legislation provides for a
presumption of grant of an application for a premises licence, subject to the determination of the
application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local
community. In doing so the sub-committee must give appropriate weight to:

e the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

e the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;
e its own statement of licensing policy

¢ the Statutory Guidance

An application may be refused in part and thereby only permit some of the licensable activities
sought.

An applicant for grant of a premises licence whose application has been refused, or who is
aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates' Court. Any
other person, who made a valid representation, may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the
decision to grant the application or against any conditions imposed.

In considering this application the sub-committee will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is thus
obliged to consider the application in accordance, in particular, with both the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and the rules of natural justice. The practical effect of
this is that the sub-committee must makes its decision based on evidence submitted in
accordance with the legislation and give adequate reasons for reaching its decision.

The sub-committee must also have regard to:

e The Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the sub-committee under a duty to
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in
its area.

e The Human Rights Act 1998
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the European
Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the sub-committee to act in a way that is
incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights protected by the Act.
Any action undertaken by the sub-committee that could have an effect upon another
person’s Human Rights must be taken having regard to the principle of proportionality - the
need to balance the rights of the individual with the rights of the community as a whole.
Any action taken by the sub-committee which affect another's rights must be no more
onerous than is necessary in a democratic society. The matters set out in this report must
be considered in light of the above obligations.

Copies of the application for grant of a premises licence and the representations to it are annexed
to this report.

Page 8
Page 2 of 27




Summary of application

Applicant Mr. Mustafa Duyus
Agent for Applicant N/A
Proposed DPS N/A

The application is for grant of a premises licence for Late Night Refreshment, times as
below. No conditions were offered on application. No objection from any responsible
authority.

Late Night Refreshment Opening Times

Monday 23:00 - 03:00 Monday 19:00 - 03:00
Tuesday 23:00 - 05:00 Tuesday 19:00 - 05:00
Wednesday 23:00 - 05:00 Wednesday 19:00 - 05:00
Thursday  23:00 - 04:00 Thursday 19:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 05:00 Friday 19:00 - 05:00
Saturday 23:00 - 05:00 Saturday 19:00 - 05:00
Sunday 23:00 - 03:00 Sunday 19:00 - 03:00

Application Form - Pages 4-24

Plans - Pages 24-26

Local Trader Representation - Page 27

Page 9
Page 3 of 27



Received
On

17 MAR 2017 Southampton City Council

S
outhampton & Application for a premises licence to be granted

Fastleigh Licensing Partnership under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLIL.OWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. in all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

e MUSTAEA. . " DUNUS.

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making this application to you as
the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Detalls

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

TONV'G KeGRAB CENTRE
OpPeEDwwELL WOUSGE
WEST QuAH RoOoAD

Posttown | SOUT VA M P TO RN Postcode SO 16N

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
Please tick yes

a) an individual or individuals * Er please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual *

i. as a limited company please complete section (B)
ii. as a partnership please complete section (B)
iii. as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

OO0On0nO

c) arecognised club please complete section (B)

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 1

Page 10
Page 4 of 27



d) a charity

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

f)  ahealth service body please complete section (B)

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

please complete section {B)

O oOo0Oo0mn

please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in {a) or (b) please confirm:

Please tick yes
¢ | am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of IE/
the premises for licensable activities; or
s | am making the application pursuant to a
o statutory function or N
o afunction discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative O]
(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS ({fill in as applicable)
. Other Title (for
Mr E‘f Mrs [] Miss [] Ms [] IR, REY)
Surname . R First names ' .
DuNUS MUSTAFA
| am 18 years old or over [\ Please tick yes
L& = n
Current posta L ALFR\SToN GARDENS
address if different T ‘
from premises g NG
address
Post Town %@ i -\—\F\N?T O A Postcode SO ‘q 8FU
Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address i
(optional) |
SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)
. |
. Other Title (for
Mr [] Mrs [] Miss [] Ms [ example, Rev) |
Surname ' First names
I am 18 years old or over [[1 Please tick yes
New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 2
Page 11

Page 5 of 27




Current postal
address if different
from premises
address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
{optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate
please give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture
(other than a body corporate), please give the name and address of each party
concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address {optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule
. . Day Month Year
?
When do you want the premises licence to start? ol §| 2 [G| T |
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do Day Month Year

you want it to end? HEREEEEN

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 3

Page 12
Page 6 of 27




Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note1)

MORILE HOT FOOD —TAKE AWAY vA™

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any | TP

one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the
Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of requiated entertainment Please tick yes

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f} or (g)
{if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of entertainment facilities:

i)  making music (if ticking yes, fill in box 1)

i} dancing (if ticking yes, fill in box J}

) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (i) or (j)
(if ticking yes, fill in box K}

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M)

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 4

Page 13
Page 7 of 27

O

O OO0O0000

0 & 000




A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors O

timings (please read (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please glve further detalls here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

New Premises - Word_tem63-363804 5

Page 14
Page 8 of 27




Films Will the exhibition of films take place indoors

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read | Ndoors [l

timings (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors |

Day |Start | Finish Both I

Mon i Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed In the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

New Premises - Word_tem63-363804 6

Page 15
Page 9 of 27




C

Indoor sporting events | Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list {please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

New Premises - Word_tcmE3-363804 7

Page 16
Page 10 of 27




D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment ’

entertainments take place indoors or outdoors or both — | Indoors [

Standard days and please tick (please read guidance note 2) 5

timings (please read Outdoors ]

guidance note 6)

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note 5)

Sun

i
New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 8

Page 17
Page 11 of 27




Live music Will the performance of live music take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors [
timings (please read (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors ]
Day | Start | Finish Both |
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of live music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note 5)

Sun

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804

Page 18
Page 12 of 27




F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place '

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors [

timings (please read (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors ]

Day Start Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3}

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
{please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note 5)

Sun

New Premises - Word_tem63-363804 10

Page 19
Page 13 of 27




G

Performances of Will the performance of dance take place

dance indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

Standard days and (please read guidance note 2)

timings (please read Outdoors

guidance note 6)

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further detalls here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
{please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

New Premisaes - Word_tem63-363804 11

Page 20
Page 14 of 27



H

Anything of a similar Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will

description to that be providing
falling within (e), (f) or

(9)

Standard days and

timings (please read
guidance note 6)

Day | Start | Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or | |ndoors O
outdoors or both — please tick (please read
Mon guidance note 2) Outdoors | D
I

Both ! 1

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed

Thur . State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar

description to that falling within (e}, (f} or (g) (please read
guidance note 4)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within (e), {f) or {g) at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sun

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 12

Page 21
Page 15 of 27




Provision of facilities
for making music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the facilities for making music you
will be providing

Will the facilities for making music be
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Aty O
(please read guidance note 2) Outdoors [l
Day | Start | Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for
making music {please read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for provision of facilities for making music at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
Sat guidance note 5)
Sun
New Pramises - Word_tem63-363804 13

Page 22
Page 16 of 27




J

Provision of facilities Will the facilities for dancing be indoors or |

for dancing outdoors or both — please tick (see guidance | Indoors i

Standard days and note 2)

timings (please read Outdoors L

guidance note 6) Both 1
Please give a description of the facilities for dancing you will be
providing

Day Start Finish

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for providing dancing facilities
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri ! Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

! for the provision of facilities for dancing entertainment at

different times to those listed in the column on the left, please

Sat list (please read guidance note 5)

Sun

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 14

Page 23
Page 17 of 27




K

Provision of facilities | Please give a description of the type of entertainment facility

for entertainment of a | you will be providing

similar description to

that falling within i or j

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish (| Will the entertainment facility be indoors or Indoors ]
outdoors or both — please tick (please read

Mon guidance note 2) Outdoors [

Both N

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within i or j
(please read guidance note 4)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the provislon of facllities for entertainment of a simllar
description to that falling within | or | at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 5)

Sun

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 15

Page 24
Page 18 of 27




L

Late night refreshment | Will the provision of late night refreshment !

Standard days and take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors [
timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note 2} -
guidance note 6) Outdoors &
Day |Start |Finish ! Both ]

Mon Q—E 00 |8.Y op Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 197 velo.§ o

Wed 2—5 o KD.6 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
22 +2:2%] refreshment (please read guidance note 4)

Thr 92 0e |0: Lo

Fri 2—; ov |0.-5.00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
. - for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read

Sat 73 80 [0.5.00 guidance note 5)

Sun ﬂoc 0. 5. 00

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 16

Page 25
Page 19 of 27




Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 8)

(o

Hours premises are State any seasonal varlations (please read guidance note 4)
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish

Mon \q e (O, _s o

Tue 19 5e |0, B

Wed lﬁ.ﬁt 0.S so

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be

o open to the public at different times from those listed in the
U 14, ¢e |O.4. ¢\ | column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fi 9 e [0.Sce

Sat A L. |0.C e

Sun i‘],ﬂb G.z,t‘ac

New Premises - Word_tcm63-363804 18

Page 26
Page 20 of 27



Supply of alcohol | Will the supply of alcohol be for | On the

Standard days and consumption (Please tick box) {please read premises [

timings (please read guidance note 7)

guidance note 6) Off the ]

premises

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 4}

Tue

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read gmdance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as

premises supervisor

Address

Postcode I

Personal Licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority {if known)

New Premises - Word_tem63-363804 17

Page 27
Page 21 of 27




P Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a} General - all four licensing objectives {b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 9)

Kok Fobé\ —~tTuke ALIONY Van

b) The prevention of crime and discrder

A

c) Public safety

ul?

d) The prevention of public nuisance

al?

A3

@) The protection of children from harm

S

New Premises - Word_tem&3-363804 19

Page 28
Page 22 of 27




Please tick yes
¢ | have made or enclosed payment of the fee
® | have enclosed the plan of the premises

* | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable

®* | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be premises g"

[k

supervisor, if applicable
® | understand that | must now advertise my application

® | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See
guidance note 11). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature
fats \L-"3~ 2.0\
Capacity O AL

For joint applications signature of 2" applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent. (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant
please state in what capacity.

‘Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 13)

Post town [ | Post code |

Telephone number (if any) |

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

New Premises - Word_tem63-363804 20

Page 29
Page 23 of 27




.g.

-
(1o}

S
g

R
Moz oA

.,‘
S,
s
g,
M

1w

A, AP
. e N Fr. . o : =
Barrag 22 e Qeluanty Broamy o FR02 Tua 1 e posarite geiin Gr e ef s i e e
T I et PRSI TRm p T i po e @i Drafnishy TR A Ui e vk Seiitnpny Stis, S (g 7 L%
Ly ey ""Fr“?f#*}?" FFammes froen E« YU A G U 1D BrOGe R O 347 S nepags. 5&;-;‘-‘"%""?" G4 ':""?“y fmm e ams
. SR e e e ..,,..;-._.M,_}t Cmm e m — --'—é*." , L s -_ : : —— jl;': ] -t
: Page 30 ’

Page 24 of 27




7&7 ﬂ@om_

Fsw #0 }ét

7777227

L w73

=2 /ES

<

Page 31
Page 25 of 27

—

Syl Yuea M 5 WNOL

W HGsH -

diysiaunied Suisuaa)T demRses

? uojdweyinog

A0C ¥yw £ |

ug
panaday




‘mm"-‘.m

" w ",

Phstc showmg appmximate

position of mobile burger van in Received
front of closed gate. o
17 MAR 2017
Southampton &

Eastleigh Licensing Partnership

Page 32
Page 26 of 27



RICHMOND ggclml’l;nr:g tl-(:%undai
HYUNDAI

West Quay Road,
Southampton,
Hampshire, 5015 1GY
Tel.

Received
On

13 APR 207

southampton &
sing Partnership

i icen
Licencing Team L—Eaiﬂigw”“'
Southampton City Council
Southampton
PO Box 1767
SO18 9LA 12" April 2017

MOTORTRADER H
IDUSIRY V705 2010 NDUSTRY AWAEDS 2DF

IR | WINNER

Dear Sirs,

Re: 2017/00969/01SPRN

I refer to the above referenced Application for “The Provision of Late Night Refreshment”
that has been made by a Burger/Kebab Van to be situated outside of our premises in West
Quay Road, Southampton.

You may be aware that work is starting next week on a full refurbishment of our premises at
the above referenced address. This involves a significant level of capital investment, not only
in the building itself, but also in terms of the vehicles we will have on display once the
refurbishment is complete.

Aside from how closely the proposed venue is to a City Centre major junction, we have had
instances in the past, whereby we have experienced soiling of our site and vehicles, including
wninar drmnge to come ~Ftham cayged by late »ioht revellers hanging around this street at

this location after leaving such night spots such as Leisure World.

We feel very strongly that this is not an appropriate location for this kind of “late night
refreshment”, In addition to the reasons listed above, we do not believe people hanging
around Burger Vans late at night, portrays the sort of image that Southampton as a City is
seeking to convey as to what it has to offer at night.

If you need any further information regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours Sincerely

Alex Jackson
General Manager

Richmond Cars {Seuthampton) Ltd

Page 33
Page 27 of 27

e ——

.




This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER

SUBJECT

DATE OF HEARING
REPORT OF
E-mail

Application Date :

Application Valid :

Agenda Iltem 8

LICENSING (LICENSING & GAMBLING) SUB COMMITTEE

HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

BITTERNE EXPRESS, 27 ST. CATHERINES ROAD
SOUTHAMPTON SO18 1LL

THURSDAY 11™ MAY 2017- 11:00am

SERVICE DIRECTOR — TRANSACTIONS & UNIVERSAL
SERVICES

licensing@southampton.gov.uk
17th March 2017 Application Received 17th March 2017

17th March 2017 Reference : 2017/01032/01SRAP

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679

Representations from Responsible Authorities

Responsible Authority Satisfactory?
Children Services - Licensing Yes

Hampshire Fire And Rescue - Licensing Yes

Environmental Health - Licensing Yes

Public Health - Public Health Manager Supporting Review
Planning & Sustainability - Development YES

Control - Licensing

Page 35
Page 1 of 45



Police - Licensing Supporting Review

Trading Standards - Licensing Applicant

Other Representations

Support for Premises

Name Address Contributor Type

Mrs Heather Munday [24A Bond Road, Bitterne Park, Southampton, |Resident Support

SO18 1LQ of premises

Legal Implications

1.

Part 3 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that a responsible authority or any other
person may apply for review of a premises licence.

In such circumstances, the applicant for the review must serve a copy of the review
application on the holder of the premises licences, the licensing authority and each of the
responsible authorities.

On receipt of an application for review, officers will consider its validity under delegated
powers. Reasons for rejection, in whole or in part, include:

e that the grounds for review are not relevant to one of more of the licensing objectives
and;

e that the application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious, unless it is made by a
responsible authority.

The licensing authority must display a prescribed notice of the review application on the
outside or adjacent the premises, on the authority’s website and at the Civic Centre; the
notice must remain on display for 28 days and any interested party or the responsible
authorities may make representations in that period.

5. The licensing authority is then required to hold a hearing to consider the review.

6. In doing so the sub-committee must give appropriate weight to:

e the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; the representations
(including supporting information) presented by all the parties;

e its own statement of licensing policy
e the Statutory Guidance

In determining an application for review, the legislation provides that the sub-committee
may take any (or none) of the following steps, as it considers necessary:

e modify the conditions of the licence;

e exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

e remove the designated premises supervisor;

e suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months

e revoke the licence.

Page 36
Page 2 of 45



8. The Licensing Act 2003 provides for appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the sub-
committee’s decision in relation to an application for review by the premises licence
holder and any other party who made a representation to the application.

9. In considering this application the sub-committee will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and
is thus obliged to consider the application in accordance, in particular, with both the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and the rules of natural
justice. The practical effect of this is that the sub-committee must makes its decision
based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and give adequate
reasons for reaching its decision.

10.The sub-committee must also have regard to:

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the sub-committee under a
duty to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

The Human Rights Act 1998

The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the sub-committee to act in
a way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights
protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the sub-committee that could have an
effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken having regard to the
principle of proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with the
rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the sub-committee which
affect another's rights must be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic
society. The matters set out in this report must be considered in light of the above
obligations.

11.Copies of the application for review and the representations to it are annexed to this
report.

Page 37
Page 3 of 45



SUMMARY

Application form (trading standards) — Pages 7-13
Additional Evidence (trading standards) — Pages 74-25
Public Health Support of Review — Pages 26-29
Hampshire Constabulary Support of review — Pages 30-44
Ms. Heather Munday Support of Premises - Page 45

Premises Licence Holder Mr. Meheindhan Navakumar from 15/09/15

Designated Premises Supervisor Mr. Meheindhan Navakumar from 15/09/15

Licensable Activities.

Supply by retail of alcohol
Monday 08:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 08:00 -23:00
Wednesday 08:00 - 23:00
Thursday 08:00 -23:00
Friday 08:00 - 23:00

The opening hours of the premises
Monday 08:00 - 23:20
Tuesday 08:00 - 23:20
Wednesday 08:00 -23:20
Thursday 08:00 - 23:20

Saturday ~ 08:00 - 23:00 Friday 08:00 -23:20
sund 10:00 - 2230 Saturday 08:00 -23:20
unday aeds Sunday 10:00 - 22:50

The application for review relates to the licence holder failing to meet the licensing
objectives, to prevent crime and disorder, in that on two occasions he did not comply with
mandatory conditions.

Conditions attached to current licence — excluding mandatory conditions.

EMBEDDED CONDITIONS FROM CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS ACT 1933

It is a condition of your licence that you comply with the extant provisions of the Children
and Young Persons Act 1933, as amended.

EMBEDDED CONDITIONS FROM THE LICENSING ACT 1964
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:

(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 08:00 to 23:00

(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10:00 to 22:30

(c) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30

(d) On Good Friday, 08:00 to 22:30

The above restrictions do not prohibit:

(a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;

Page 38
Page 4 of 45



(b) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor
of the alcohol so ordered;

(c) the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club;

(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale
or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an
authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces;

Conditions attached to current licence (after a hearing by the licensing authority)

1. The Premises Licence Holder must be able to identify who supplied alcohol present at
the premises and supply written details (including name, address and telephone number of
supplier and date of supply/price paid) to an authorised officer within 24 hours of receiving
a request to do so. Delivery notes, invoices, receipts and similar records should be
retained for a minimum period of 24 months and made available on request to an
authorised officer.

2. The holder of the premises licence shall ensure that every individual who appears to be
under 25 years of age seeking to purchase or be supplied with alcohol at or from the
premises shall produce means of identification acceptable to the Licensing Authority
proving that individual to be 18 years of age or older. If the person seeking alcohol is
unable to produce acceptable means of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol will be
made to or for that person. Notices regarding the store's Challenge 25 policy must be
displayed.

3. All staff who sell alcohol will be trained to NCPLH (National Certificate of Personal
Licence Holder) level. All sales of alcohol must be directly supervised and authorised by a
Personal Licence Holder until such staff have achieved training to NCPLH level.

4. That staff must be trained regarding appropriate precautions to prevent the sale of
alcohol to persons under the age of 18 and records are kept of such training, which are
signed and dated by the member of staff who has received the training. Staff will receive
refresher training every six months as a minimum and records, signed and dated by the
member of staff will be kept of this refresher training. Records of training will be available
for inspection by Hampshire Constabulary, the Licensing Authority, Trading Standards and
other Responsible Authorities on request.

5. The holder of the premises licence shall keep a written record, namely a refusals book,
of those incidents where a person who a member of staff believes to be under the age of
18, and is unable to produce acceptable means of identification proving that they are of 18
years or more, attempts to purchase alcohol and is refused. The record shall include
details, in English, of the date, time, a brief description, including estimated age, of the
person who attempted to purchase the alcohol, the type of alcohol and the name of the
person who refused the sale. Staff shall be trained in the use of the refusals book and it
should be kept in a readily accessible place known by all members of staff. The record will
be regularly checked by the premises licence holder or the designated premises
supervisor to ensure that all staff are completing records and, and this person will sign and
date the record as evidence that they have checked it. The refusals book will be available
for inspection by Hampshire Constabulary, the Licensing Authority, Trading Standards and
other relevant authorities on request.

6. A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in the licensed premises to the
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, Hampshire Constabulary and Trading Standards.

Page 39
Page 5 of 45



As a minimum, it shall enable surveillance of both external and internal areas of the
premises including entrances and exits. Recordings from the system shall be of a quality
acceptable as evidence in a court of law and shall be securely retained at the licensed
premises for a minimum period of 30 days after the recording, and shall be surrendered to
Hampshire Constabulary, the Licensing Authority, or Trading Standards immediately on

request. The Premises Licence Holder and staff must be capable of operating the CCTV
system.

Page 40
Page 6 of 45



Southampton City Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
if you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheetls if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

|  Southampton City Council's Trading Standards Service

(Insert name of applicant}
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51/ apply for the review
of a club premises certificate under section B7 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or

description
Bitterne Express, 27 St. Catherines Road

Post town Southampton Post code (if known) SO18 1LL

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if

known)
Meheindhan Navakumar

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known
2005/00349/01SPRC

Part 2 - Applicant details

| am
Please tick yes

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises ]
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises ]
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises O
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the N

premises

_ Page 41
Licence Review Application Bitterne Express 2017 Page 7 of 45



2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) []
below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicabie)
Please tick
M [1 Ms [ Mss [ Ms [] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
| am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address -

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Licence Review Application Bitieme Express 2017 Page 42
Page 8 of 45



(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Lucas Marshall

Trading Standards Service
Southampton City Council
Civic Centre

Southampton

SO147LY

Telephone number (if any)

E-rhail add@_&s (optional)
Dsouthampton.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes
1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

000

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

That the Premises Licence Holder, Meheindhan Navakumar, failed to meet the
Licensing Objective, to Prevent Crime & Disorder, in that on two occasions he did not
comply with the mandatory conditon on his Premises Licence which bans the sale of
alcohol below the cost of duty + vat, which constitutes an offence under Section 136 of
the Licensing Act 2003 for an unauthorised sale of alcohol.

That the Premises Licence Holder, Meheindhan Navakumar, failed to meet the
Licensing Objective, to Prevent Crime & Disorder, in that he failed to provide
traceability information relating to the alcohol which he had sold below duty + vat, an
offence under Regulation 19(1) of the Food Safety & Hygiene (England) Regulatons
2013, which was also in breach of a condition on his Premises Licence which requires
provision of such traceability information to an authorised Officer within 24 hours of

such a request.

Licence Review Application Bitteme Express 2017 PaP;egg §f345



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

From November 2016 to February 2017 Southampton City Council’s Trading
Standards Service, Licensing Department and Hampshire Constabulary were involved
in an exercise aimed at establishing whether licensed premises were acting in
accordance with a mandatory condition on their premises licence, that alcohal will not
be sold below the cost of duty + vat.

Sale of alcohol in breach of this condition constitutes an unauthorised sale, which is an
offence under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003. Alcohol sold below duty + vat is
also likely to be duty evaded stock, as it is not financially viable to sell it for below this
price.

The exercise involved:

- Southampton City Council's Licensing Department writing to licensed premises to
advise/remind them that the condition was in place.

- Trading Standards and Hampshire Constabulary conducting test purchases of
alcohol to ascertain whether the condition was being breached.

- Waming/advising those premises which failed the first test purchase exercise, and
requesting invoices relating to the alcohol sold below duty + vat.

- Conducting a second test purchase at those premises which failed the first.

The intention was to deal with those premises which failed both test purchases by way
of Licence Review.

The products which were targeted were strong Polish beers, particularly Karpackie 9%
500ml cans and Perla Mocna 7.6% 500mi cans, the reasons being:

- That information gathered during inspections of premises indicated that these
products were liable to be sold below duty + vat

- And that these products are particularly appealing to street drinkers and alcoholics,
where price will strongly dictate how much they consume.

In November 2016 Southampton City Council’s Licensing Department sent a letter of
advice regarding the condition to premises including Bitterne Express, 27 St
Catherines Rd, Southampton. (a copy of this letter is attached).

On 14th December 2016 Trading Standards made a test purchase of 4 cans of Perla
Mocna 7.6% 500ml beer at that premises: it was sold for £4 (the duty plus VAT
minimum price for this product is £4.36).

On 22nd December 2016 | hand delivered a warning letter to the premises (a copy of
this letter is attached) and requested invoices relating to the Perla Mocna. The
Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor, Meheindhan
Navakumar was not present so | spoke to him by phone and advised regarding the
condition. He agreed to provide invoices for the Perla Mocna by 3rd January 2017.
Whilst there | advised that the cigarette gantry was not compliant in that the cigarettes
and tobacco within were not adequately covered, as required under the Tobacco
Advertising and Promotion (Display) (England) Regulations 2010 (as amended), and
were visible to customers. Beers which were not labelled in English, as required under
the Food Information Regulations 2014, were also displayed for sale at the premises,
as had been the case during an inspection that | had conducted in June 2016, when |
had advised that these be removed from sale.

On 7th February 2017 | still had not received the invoices from Mr Navakumar so |
visited Bitterne Express. Before announcing myself to the member of staff present i
asked her how much the Perla Mocna was. She told me that it was £4 for 4 cans, so |

Licence Review Application Bitterne Express 2017 Page 44
Page 10 of 45



made a purchase: despite repeat advice and warnings the condition had been
breached again. Polish labelled beers were still displayed for sale and meat products
were found at the premises which were past their use by date, an offence under the
Food Safety & Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013.

On 10th February | sent a letter to Mr Navakumar inviting him to attend interview (a
copy of this letter is attached). | phoned him regarding the importance of the interview
however as of yet he has not attended, or provided invoices relating to the Perla
Mocna. It is an offence under Regulation 19(1) of the Food Safety and Hygiene
(England) Regulations 2013 to fail to supply traceability information, such as invoices,
for food and drink. There is also a condition on the licence which was imposed
following previous sales of illegal alcohol at the premises, that "the Premises Licence
Holder must be able to identify who supplied alcohol present at the premises and
supply written details (including name, address and telephone number of supplier and
date of supply/price paid) to an authorised officer within 24 hours of receiving a request
to do so. Delivery notes, invoices, receipts and similar records should be retained for a
minimum period of 24 months and made available on request to an authorised officer”.
Clearly this condition has been breached

During conversation with a member of staff, Mohan, at Bitterne Express on 14"
February 2017 he informed me that Mr Navakumar had not been to the shop for the
last 3 weeks. As Designated Premises Supervisor he should be present, and ensuring
that the premises is complying with the Licensing Objectives and is properly managed.

Clearly advice and warnings have been ineffective in ensuring compliance at this
premises. | would therefore ask that the Premises Licence is suspended for a period of
time, as a deterrent to further offences, that Mr Navakumar is removed as Designated
Premises Supervisor, and that the following condition is imposed on the Premises
Licence to assist in prevention of sale of aicohol below duty + vat:

"Beer of over 7.5% will not be sold from the premises”.

) - Page 45
Licence Review Application Bitleme Express 2017 Page 11 of 45




Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before Il

If yes please state the date of that application
s ep Day Month Year

LITITIIT]

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

Licence Review Application Bitiemne Express 2017 Page 46
Page 12 of 45



Please tick yes
» | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible X
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club

premises certificate, as appropriate
» | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my [X]

application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WIiTH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what

capacity.

Signature

M T I T
Date 17" March 2017

...............................................................................................................

Capacity  Trading Standards Officer

...............................................................................................................

Contact name {where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)
Lucas Marshall

Trading Standards Service

Southampton City Council

Civic Centre

Southampton

SO147LY

Post town Post Code

Southampton | SO147LY

Telephone number (if any) _
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional) @southampton.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

6. See separate guidance for responsible authorities’ details.

A ) Page 47
Licence Review Application Bitterne Express 2017 Page 13 of 45




LICENSING TEAM
Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership =
Southampton City Council Please address all correspondence to:

Civic Centre Licensing - Southampton City Council, SOUTHAMPTON
Southampton 5014 7LY PO Box 1767, Southampton SO18 SLA CITYCOUNCIL
Direct dial: 023 8083 3002 E-mail: licensing@southampton.gov.uk
Our ref: [premises reference] Please ask for: Licensing

To premises licence holders — off licences

November 2016

IMPORTANT ~ THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER MAY AFFECT YOUR BUSINESS

Dear Sir or Madam,

LICENSING ACT 2003 - MINIMUM PRICING AND TEST PURCHASING

As you will be aware, the conditions of your licence to sell alcohol include requirements, amongst others,
that you do not sell or supply alcohol below the minimum permitted price and that you have an age
verification policy in place to ensure that alcohol is not sold or supplied to anyone under the age of 18. It
is also an offence to keep smuggled goods of any description on licensed premises.

Recent test purchase operations by Trading Standards and Hampshire Constabulary have revealed a
number of premises where alcohol has been sold to persons under the age of 18 and smuggled aicohol
has been sold below the minimum legal price for that product. If you are able to purchase alcohol for less
than the total of duty plus VAT, it is likely to be non-duty paid, smuggled goods.

Such alcohol also has a disproportionately high negative impact on public health and public order
problems, including street drinkers.

This has resulted, so far, in a premises licence being revoked on review by the Licensing Committee.

The Licensing Act 2003 provides for maximum penaities as follows:
« Sale or supply of alcohol to or for a person under 18:  unlimited fine
s Saie or supply of alcohol below the minimum price: unlimited fine and/or six months’ imprisonment
» Keeping smuggled goods on licensed premises: £1000 fine

In addition, licences of premises where such offences are discovered are likely to be reviewed,

potentially resulting in their revocation. Home Office Guidance makes it clear, in particular, that the saie

of smuggled goods from and other criminal activity at licensed premises is particularly serious and that
revocation of the licence should be seriously considered on the first occurrence.

Trading Standards and Hampshire Constabulary will be carrying out further test purchase operations in
the future, and intend, where appropriate, to bring reviews of licences if offences are found.

A copy of this letter is being sent all holders of premises licences where alcohol is restricted to its sale for
consumption off the premises.

Further information, including a calculator to give indicative minimum prices for alcohol is available at
www.southampton.gov.uk/premlic

On the reverse of this letter you will find the text of the mandatory licence conditions which apply to your
business.

Yours faithfully,

Licensing Manager

SCC - Off Licences re pricing 201611
Page 48
Switchboard: 023 8083 3002 Page 14 of 45 www.southampton.gov.ukilicensing



MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Age verification policy - from 1 October 2014

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
olcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who oppear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Alcohol minimum permitted price - from 28 May 2014

1 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2 For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
(o) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+([DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(if) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(ii}  Vis the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there Is in force o
premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii}  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force o
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means vaiue added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994.

3 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would {(apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4 (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on
the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

SCC - Off Licences re pricing 201611

Switchboard: 023 8083 3002 Page 49 www.southampton.gov.ukllicensing
Page 15 of 45



Trading Standards Service

Southampton City Council

Civic Centre

Southampton SO14 7LY

Direct dial: Please ask for: Lucas Marshall
Fax: e e e Our ref:

Email: @southampton.gov.uk Your ref:

22" December 2016

Meheindhan Navakumar
Bitterne Express

27 St Catherines Road
Southampton

S018 1LL

Dear Mr Navakumar

Licensing Act 2003
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008
Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013

| am writing to advise you regarding a breach of a condition of your premises licence which took
place at, Bitterne Express, 27 St Catherines Road, Southampton on 14 December 2016.

Your premises licence is subject to a mandatory condition which bans the sale of alcohol at below
the cost of duty plus VAT. Any sale of alcohol below this price is unauthorised and as such
constitutes an offence under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003, If you are able to obtain
alcohol below this price it is also indicative that it is illegal, duty evaded product, and sale of such
product constitutes an offence under the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations
2008.

This mandatory condition has been in place since May 2014. You were advised regarding the
condition by Southampton City Council’s Licensing Team when it came into place in 2014 and you
were further advised on the requirements by the Licensing Team by way of letter more recently in
November 2016. If your licence has been issued since May 2014, the condition is also clearly
writlen on your premises licence, but, in any case, your licence is subject to it.

Despite the above advice, on 14 December 2016, Southampton City Council’s Trading Standards
Service made a test purchase of alcohol at less than duty plus VAT at (premises), namely 4 cans
of Perla Mocna 7.6% 500m| beer which was sold for £4 (the duty plus VAT minimum price for this
product is £4.36). It is therefore alleged that you have committed an offence under Section 136 of

the Licensing Act 2003.

The test purchase was part of a joint exercise with Licensing and Hampshire Constabulary, to
detect non-compliant premises. The sale of strong beers at illegally low prices has a detrimental
effect with regard to competition with compliant traders, and consumption by alcoholics and street
drinkers, who favour such products.

As a non-compliant premises, you will initially be dealt with by way of this warning letter. | would
strongly advise that you revise your pricing immediately, and only source alcohol from legitimate
wholesalers. A further test purchase will be made and, if you are found to be in breach of the
condition again, your licence will be subject to review, when the Licensing Committee would have
the option, amongst other sanctions, of revoking it.

| would also ask that you provide original invoices for the above ailcohol to me by 3™ January 2016.
It is an offence under the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 to fail to provide
traceability information.

Page 50
Page 16 of 45



If you require further advice please contact me by e-mail: Dsouthampton.gov.uk or
on 023 8083 4930. If you provide your e-mail address to me | can send you a duty plus VAT
calculator, to assist you in complying with the terms of your licence.

Yours sincereiy

Lucas Marshall
Trading Standards Officer

John Burke
Licensing Manager

PC Alex Boucouvalas
Hampshire Constabulary

Page 51
Page 17 of 45



Trading Standards Service

Southampton City Council
Civic Centre
Southampton SO14 7LY
Direct dial: Please ask for: Lucas Marshall
Fax: e v v Our ref:
Email: @southampton.gov.uk Your ref:
6" January 2017
Meheindhan Navakumar
Bitterne Express
27 Si Catherines Road
Southampton
SO18 1LL

Dear Mr Navakumar

Licensing Act 2003

Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008
Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013

Food Information Regulations 2014

On 22nd December | hand delivered a letter to your premises, Bitterne Express, 27 St Catherines
Rd, Southampton. The letter was a warning regarding the sale of alcohol below the cost of duty +
vat, in breach of a mandatory condition on your premises licence. In that letter | also requested
copies of invoices relating to your purchase of Perla Mocha beer, as | was concerned that it may
be illegal duty evaded product, and asked that these should be provided by 3™ January: it is an
offence under the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 to fail to supply these.

You were not present at the premises on 22™ December so | spoke to you by phone. | explained
the content of the letter, and that | required the above invoices by 3™ January, which you agreed to
provide. Whilst speaking to you | also advised that your cigarette gantry was not compliant in that
the cigarettes and tobacco within were not adequately covered. You agreed to come into the shop
that day to remedy this and amend the pricing of your beer accordingly.

On 3" January, having not received your invoices, | visited Bitterne Express. Again you were not
present so | spoke to you by phone. You stated that you had not retrieved the invoices for the
Perla Mocna from your accountant, but should have these by 13" January. Regarding your
cigarette gantry this was still non-compliant, with cigarettes clearly visible, despite the fact that you
could easily have remedied this by dropping the external cover. | also found Polish beer which was
not compliant with the Food Information Regulations 2014 in that it was not labelled in English — |
had advised you regarding this during my routine inspection of the premises on 27" June 2016.

It concerns me greatly that you do not appear to be able, or willing, to heed basic advice. When
told that you are committing offences you do not take simple actions to prevent doing so. | would
strongly advise that you put more input into your business and try to become a responsible, law
abiding, trader. The repercussions of not complying with the law are sericus and can have a
profound effect on your Premises Licence: one of your Licensing Objectives is to prevent Crime
and Disorder, and if you fail to do so your Premises Licence can be taken to review.

| will visit your premises on 13" January and | would ask that you are present with your invoices.

If you require further advice please contact me by e-mail: lucas.marshali@southampton.gov.uk or
on 023 8083 4830. If you provide your e-mail address to me | can send you a duty plus VAT
calculator, to assist you in complying with the terms of your licence.

Yours sincerely

Page 52
Page 18 of 45



Lucas Marshall
Trading Standards Officer

Page 53
Page 19 of 45



Trading Standards Service

Southampton City Council

Civic Centre

Southampton SO14 7LY

Direct dial: ' Please ask for: Lucas Marshall
Fax: Our ref: 17/00068/FOODST
Email: @southampton.gov.uk Your ref:

10" February 2017

Meheindhan Navakumar
Bitterne Express

27 St Catherines Road
Southampton

S0O18 1LL

Dear Mr Navakumar

Licensing Act 2003
Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013
Food Information Regulations 2014

On 14" December 2016 alcohol, Perla Mocna beer, was sold at below duty + vat at Bitterne
Express, 27 St Catherines Rd, Southampton, in breach of a mandatory condition on your Premises
Licence. A letter of advice/warning was sent to your premises regarding this matter on 22™
December. | also requested traceability information, invoices, regarding your purchase of the Perla
Mocna to be delivered to me by 3" January 2017.

Having not received the invoices | visited Bitterne Express on 3" January. The invoices were not
available. You explained over the phone that these were with your accountant, but you would
obtain them by 13" January. Whilst at the premises | conducted a brief food inspection and found
that Polish beers were displayed for sale which were not labelled in English, as required under the
Food Information Regulations 2014 - | had advised you regarding this requirement during my
routine inspection of the premises on 27" June 2016.

As of this time | have still not received the requested invoices. It is therefore alleged that you have
committed an offence under Regulation 19(1) of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England)
Regulations 2013 to fail to supply traceability information relating to the Peria Mocna.

On 7" February | visited Bitterne Express. Whilst there | noted that you had Perla Mocna beer for
sale. | asked the shop assistant how much it was, and she told me that it was £1.09 per can, or 4
for £4. The duty + vat liable on 4 cans of Perla Mocna is £4.36. | purchased 4 cans of the beer for
£4. Itis alleged that you have, again, committed an offence under Section 136 of Licensing Act
2003 for making unauthorised sales of alcohol. | conducted a food inspection and again found
Polish beers which were not labelled in English, and twoe packets of ham which were past their use
by date, 5th Feb, displayed for sale, constituting an offence under Food Safety and Hygiene
(England) Regulations 2013.

| would like to arrange a formal interview with you to discuss the above matters. This interview will
be audio recorded in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 and associated
Codes of Practice, and you are advised to seek legal advice if you wish to do so. You are entitled
to have your solicitor present at the interview. The interview will be conducted at The Gateway,
One Guildhall Square, Southampton, SO14 7FP. Please contact me on 02380 834930 or by e-mail
to arrange a convenient date. Please bring invoices relating to your purchase of the Perla Mocna
which was sold from your premises to the interview.

Yours sincerely

Page 54
Page 20 of 45



Lucas Marshall
Trading Standards Officer

Page 55
Page 21 of 45



Trading Standards Service

Southampton City Council

Civic Centre

Southampton S014 7LY

Direct dial: Please ask for: Lucas Marshall
Fax: Our ref: 17/00068/FOODST
Email: @southampton.gov.uk  Your ref:

10" April 2017

Licensing Department

Civic Centre

Southampton ————

S014 7LS AECEIVED
10 APR 2007

Dear SirfMadam 5 0 0 e .

Licensing Act 2003

Further to my application for review of the Premises Licence for Bitterne Express, 27 St
Catherines Road, Southampton | would add the following:

On 23" March 2017 | conducted an interview with the Premises Licence Holder, Mr
Navakumar. During the interview he claimed that he is present at Bitterne Express for 5-6
evenings per week, however he had been away for a period of a few weeks looking after
his brother whilst his Mother was in Sri Lanka, and this coincided with the breaches of the
mandatory alcohol pricing condition, which took place in December 2016 and February
2017.

Mr Navakumar provided an invoice for his purchase the Perla Mocna beer that had been
sold at his premises below the cost of duty + vat, in breach of the pricing condition. Article
18(2) of Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 requires food business operators to have in place
systems and procedures which allow traceability information, such as invoices, to be made
available to the competent authorities on demand. This legislation does not prescribe a
time frame for the information to be produced, however guidance given by Food Standards
Agency states that food businesses should have their records sufficiently organised and
available to be produced within a short timescale. Mr Navakumar produced this
information three months after it had originally been requested, so he should be regarded
as having failed to meet this requirement, an offence under Regulation 19(1) of the Food
Safety & Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013. Additionally there is a condition on his
Premises Licence which requires Mr Navakumar to provide traceability information within
24 hours of a request by an authorised Officer. Clearly he had breached this condition.

The invoice provided gave a price for the Perla Mocna beer as £1.25 per can, however it
was being sold for only £1 per can. It seems unlikely that Mr Navakumar would make a
loss of 25 pence on each can, as this is not financially viable. | have enclosed a statement
from HMRC Officer David Fryer in which he states that the price is indicative that the beer
has come from an illicit supply source. Keeping smuggled alcohol on the premises is a
serious matter and Home Office Guidance states that revocation of a licence should be
considered in the first instance that it is found. During interview Mr Navakumar claimed

Page 56
Page 22 of 45



that he was making a loss on each can of the Perla Mocna. He has now ceased selling the
product.

Mr Navakumar said that some of prices for the goods that he sells are on their electronic
point of sale system, however some, including the Perla Mocna, had to be entered
manually. He blamed his staff for charging the incorrect price for the products.

Other conditions on the premises licence were discussed during the interview.

One such condition relates to provision of staff training regarding prevention of under age
sales, and the keeping of records of such training. Mr Navakumar could not evidence that
training had been given to staff as records had not been kept.

There is a condition that staff who sell alcohol are frained to National Certificate of Personal
Licence Holder (NCPLH) level, and if they are not then their sales of alcohol sales will be
supervised by a personal licence holder. Staff member Mariana, who had sold alcohol
below duty plus VAT, was not trained to NCPLH level and was unsupervised at the time
that she made the sale, in breach of this condition.

Yours faithfully RECEIVED
10 APR 2017

Lucas Marshall

Trading Standards Officer

Cc

Meheindhan Navakumar, Bitterne Express, 27 St Catherines Road, Southampton, SO18 1LL
Meheindhan Navakumar,:

Force Licensing Team, Hampshire Constabulary, Southampton Police Office, Civic Centre,
Southampton SO14 7LY

Page 57
Page 23 of 45



| RECEIVED |
s

HM Revenue OFFICIAL SENSITIVE FHARR 207 MG11T

&Customs e ——— (HMRC)

WITNESS STATEMENT
ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
{(Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act
1980, s.58B)

Statement of: David Glynn Fryer URN:
Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18")  Occupation: Officer of HM Revenue and Customs

This statement (consisting of two pages signed by me) Is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing
that if it is tendered in evidence I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false

or do not believe to be true.

Signature: ! Date: 08/03/2017

Indicate if witness evidence is visually recorded? Y/N (If YES, see guidance)

3
1 am employed by HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) as a Criminal Investigator.

I lead on Investigating Criminal Excise duty evasion in Central Southern England for HMRC.
Excise duty is levied on alcohol, tobacco and fuel oils.

I have been asked by Lucas Marshall of Southampton Trading Standards to provide an excise duty
calculation with regards to four 500 millilitre cans of “Perla Mocna” lager which were purchased
from Bitterne Express, 27 St Catherines Road, Bitterne, Southampton on the 14" December 2016
and 7% February 2017.
To find the excise duty on one can of 500ml “Perla Mocna” lager you first have to convert the
calculation to Hectolitres.

(1 x 0.5)/100 x 1 = 0.005 hl

The bulk Hectolitre figure is multiplied by the ABV amount, In this case 7.6%.

0.005 x 7.6 = 0.038 hl%ABV

The current duty rate is obtained from Part 12, Volume 1 of the Tariff.

Multiply the hi%ABV amount by the current Beer duty rate. The duty rate in 2016 is £23.85

The duty rate on one 500ml! can is therefore £23.85 x 0.038 = £0.90

The excise duty is then subject to Value added tax of 20%.

£0.90 x 20% = 18p £0.90 + 18p = £1.08

Therefore the minimum excise duty on a four 500mls cans of “Perla Mocna” at 7.6% ABV is

Date: 08/03/2017

Signature: David Fryer Signature: Enter Name
(Signature of witness) (Signature witnessed by)
STATEMENT OF WITNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY

Pafelsd 2

May 2015 Page 24 of 45 MG11T HMRC



HM Revenue OFFICIAL SENSITIVE MG11T

&Customs (HMRC) |

Statement of: David Glynn Fryer UR_f_hl_ __ __'
4 times £1.08 which equals E4.32.

These calculations do not include any VAT charged on the actual purchase price of the product, nor

production or transport costs and is just the Excise duty due to HMRC.

It is therefore not financially viable to sell this product for less than £4.32 and would be an

indication that these goods have come from an illicit supply source.

Date: 08/03/2017

Signature: David Fryer Signature; Enter Name
{Signature of witness) (Signature witnessed by)
STATEMENT OF WITNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
Page 2 0f 2
May 2015 Page 59 MG11T HMRC

Page 25 of 45



From: Denley, Sally

Sent: 18 April 2017 10:45

To: Licensing

Ce: Marshall, Lucas; Bates, Phil; Boucouvalas, Alex
Subject: Bitterne Express

Attachments: Bitterne Express License Reviewamended letter.docx
Dear Sirs,

Please find attached amended letter in support of the licensing review.
There was an error in paragraph two that has now been amended. (in italics).

Bw
Sally

Sally Denley
Public Health Development Manager
Southampton City Council

Tel:
Emouthamgton.gov.gl;

Page 60
Page 26 of 45



h
. 2t P . SOUTHAMPTON
Direct dial: 02= Fax: CITYCOUNCIL

Email: @southampton.gov.uk Minicom:
Please ask for: Sally Denley Our ref:

Licensing Department Date: 12 April 2017
Civic Centre

Southampton

S014 7LS

Dear Sirs,

Re: Bitterne Express License Review

Public Health, Southampton City council are writing in support of Trading Standards Service,
Southampton City Council application to review the above premises license on the following

grounds:

1. The prevention of crime and disorder

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The above premises have been selling 4 cans of Perla Mocna beer for £4.00 which is below
the price of duty + VAT, which is £1.09 on this product. There is a mandatory condition on all
alcohol licenses stating that alcohol cannot be sold below duty + VAT.

It is known that low cost, high strength Polish lagers are favoured by those most vulnerable to
alcohol abuse who in turn suffer increased levels of merbidity and mortality as a result to
alcohol. The persistently high rate of alcohol attendances and admissions to hospital places
immense strain on an already overburdened health service in Southampton.

The rate of alcohol specific admissions in Southampton is significantly higher than the England
average for males and significantly higher than the England average for females. Premature
death and health inequalities linked to alcohol abuse is an increasing problem in the City.

We are concerned that premises who do not adhere to licensing regulations are fuelling the
health issues related to heavy alcohol consumption as well as contributing to issues around
crime and disorder and would support the following condition:

“Beer, lager and cider over 7.5% will not be sold from these premises”.

Yours faithfully

Sally Denley
Public Health Development Manager

Page 61
Page 27 of 45



From: Denley, Sally

Sent: 13 April 2017 15:38

To: Licensing

Ce: Marshall, Lucas; Boucouvalas, Alex;
Subject: Bitterne Express

Attachments: Bitterne Express License Review.docx
Dear Lucas,

Please find attached letter in support of your application to review.

Bw
Sally

Sally Denley
Public Health Development Manager
Southampton City Council

Tel:
Em:

Page 62
Page 28 of 45

Bates, Phil



ﬁ

Direct dial: 023 Fax: ??P-.« co umT

Emailp i @southampton.gov.uk Minicom:
Please ask for: Sally Denley Our ref:

Licensing Department Date: 12 April 2017
Civic Centre

Southampton

SO147LS

Dear Sirs,

Re: Bitterne Express License Review

Public Health, Southampton City council are writing in support of Trading Standards Service,
Southampton City Council application to review the above premises license on the following
grounds:

1. The prevention of crime and disorder

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The above premises have been selling cans of Perla 500 ml beer at £1.20, which is below the
price of duty + VAT, which is £1.28 on this product. There is a mandatory condition on all
alcohol licenses stating that alcohol cannot be sold below duty + VAT.

It is known that low cost, high strength Polish lagers are favoured by those most vulnerable to
alcohol abuse who in turn suffer increased levels of morbidity and mortality as a result to
alcohol. The persistently high rate of alcohol attendances and admissions to hospital places
immense strain on an already overburdened health service in Southampton.

The rate of alcohol specific admissions in Southampton is significantly higher than the England
average for males and significantly higher than the England average for females. Premature
death and health inequalities linked to alcohol abuse is an increasing problem in the City.

We are concerned that premises who do not adhere to licensing regulations are fuelling the
health issues related to heavy alcoho! consumption as well as contributing to issues around
crime and disorder and would support the following condition:

“Beer, lager and cider over 7.5% will not be sold from these premises”.

Yours faithfully

Sally Denley
Public Health Development Manager

Page 63
Page 29 of 45



Hampshire Constabulary

Police Licensing

Civic Centre
Southampton
Hampshire
S014 7LY
Licensing Manager
Southampton City Council Telephone: 101
Civic Centre Direct Dial:023:
Southampton
SO14 7LY Fax number:
Minicom TextRelay:18001 101
Email: @hampshire.pnn.police.uk
Our ref: 44100017866
Yourref: 2005/00349/01SPRC
13/04/2017

Dear Southampton City Council,

I am writing to confirm receipt of the application for premises licence review for Bitterne
Express, 27 St. Catherine’s Road, Southampton, SO18 1LL submitted by Southampton City
Council Trading Standards Service and the further submission dated the 10% April 2017

Hampshire Constabulary supports this review application and makes representation on
behalf of the Chief Officer of Police under the following licensing objectives.

1) The prevention of crime and disorder.
2) Public Safety

Hampshire Constabulary works closely with Southampton City Council. We confirm that as
described in Mr Marshall's application, we have been working hard to deter the criminality
surrounding the supply of high strength smuggled alcohol from our licensed premises at
ilegally low prices.

In January 2011, the government launched a crackdown on the availability of cheap alcohol
(Annex 1) by seeking to make it a criminal offence to seli alcohal below the cost of duty and
VAT for that product.

From 28" May 2014, it has been a mandatory condition of all premises licences issued under
Licensing Act 2003 to supply alcohol below this cost. Alcohol supplied in contravention of
this mandatory licence condition is a criminal offence under section 136 of The Licensing Act
2003 — unauthorised licensable activities.

In early 2014 Southampton City Council wrote to all premises licensed under the act,
including these premises, warning them of the impending changes and the consequences of
non-compliance. (Annex 2)

Page 64 gsﬂs’%ﬁﬁam

Page 30 of 45 [m] o

www.hampshire.police.uk




Hampshire Constabulary

In November 2016 Southampton City Council again wrote to these premises warning the
licence holder about the requirement to meet minimum prices and of impending test

purchasing.

On the 14™ December these premises failed a test purchase exercise suppling alcohol at
illegally low prices. Yet despite a further and final hand delivered warning letter from Mr
Marshall, alcohol was again supplied to Mr Marshall on the 7" February 2017 at illegal prices

which is quite frankly, unacceptable.

We have paid particular attention to the witness statement of Mr Fryer, a criminal investigator
of HM Revenue & Customs which notes alcohol supplied from this premises on a number of
test purchases which show indications of illicit sourcing.

It is clear to Hampshire Constabulary that the licence holder has displayed no regard to the
continual warnings that Mr Marshall and Southampton City Gouncil has delivered on the
issue of cheap alcohol and numerous other regulatory compliance issues.

At this point | would fike to highlight a number of points to the Licensing Authority.
Cheap alcohol has continued to be a priority to the government and only some days ago (7"
April 2017), HM Home Office issued revised guidance under section 182 of the Licensing Act

2003 which pays due regard to this issue.

Section 10.55 (Annex 3) makes it clear that it is the responsibility of the licence holder, the
DPS and any personal licence holder making an authorisation to ensure that no alcohol is

supplied less than the permitted price.

Section 11.27 (Annex 4) identifies criminal activity which should be treated particularly
seriously for premises licence reviews. The sale or storage of smuggled alcohol is one of
these activities where guidance states that revocation even in the first instance should be

seriously considered by licensing authorities.

Section 11.18 (Annex 5) that licensing authorities should take into account already issued
warmnings of responsible authorities that have failed as part of a stepped approach. This is a
key issue of this case.

Based on Mr Marshall's findings, Hampshire Constabulary has little faith that Meheindhan
Navakumar is an appropriate licence holder. Serious improvements and a change in attitude
to regulatory compliance is required. | ask the Licensing Authority to note that the premises
licence already has a number of licence conditions which are not being adhered to.

Should the licensing authority choose not to revoke the premises licence, a suspension of
the premises licence and the imposition of an additional licence conditions (Annex 6) seems
to be required in order to make extensive changes to the operation of this business.

Yours sincerely,

Constable 25323 A BOUCOUVALAS
Force Licensing Department

. : CONSTABUCARY
www.hampshire. police.uk Page 65 B S
Page 31 of 45 et




Crackdown on availability of cheap alcohol - GOV.UK Page 1 of 3

finney 1)

&2 GOV.UK

1. Home (https://Awww.gov.uk/)

News story
Crackdown on availability of cheap alcohol

From: Home Office (https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/home-office) and The Rt
Hon James Brokenshire MP (https:/www.gov.uk/government/people/fjames-
brokenshire)

Part of: Alcohol sales and misuse (https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/alcohol-sales)

First published: 18 January 2011

This was published under the 2010 to 2015 Conservative and Liberal
Democrat coalition government

Retailers will be banned from selling alcohol below the rate of duty + VAT under new plans
announced by the Home Office today.

To tackle the growing concern over how cheaply some alcoholic drinks are being soid, the
government intends to introduce a new proposal which would prevent retailers from selling a 1 litre
bottle of vodka (37.5 per cent abv) for less than £10.71 and a 440ml can of lager (4.2 per cent abv)
for less than £0.38.

This is an important first step in delivering the government’'s commitment to ban the sale of alcohol
below cost.

Minister’s quote

James Brokenshire minister for crime prevention, said: ‘We know that pricing controls can help
reduce alcohol-related violent crime and this is a crucial step in tackling the availability of cheap
alcohol.

‘In nearly half of all violent incidents the offender is believed to be under the influence of alcohol.
That's why we believe it is right fo tackle the worst instances of deep discounting.

Page 66
Page 32 of 45



Crackdown on availability of cheap alcohol - GOV.UK Page 2 of 3

‘By introducing this new measure we are sending a clear message that the government will not
stand by and let drink be sold so cheaply that it leads to a greater risk of health harms or drunken
violence.’

As part of the considerations of how to achieve the coalition commitment to deliver a ban on below
cost sales the Home Office carried out a review of alcohol pricing over the summer.

The review of pricing and associated research reports, also published today, not only shows the
complex nature of this issue but demonstrates a link between a rise in the price of alcohol and a

reduction in alcohol harms.

Notes to editors

1. The government’s review of pricing and associated research reports can be found in the alcohol
pricing section {http:/iwww.homeoffice.gov. uk/drugs/alcohol/alcohol-pricing/) of this website.

2. Examples of duty + VAT on a selection of alcoholic drinks:

Product: Can of lager
Velume: 440 ml
Strength (% abv): 4.2
Duty: £0.32

Duty + VAT £0.38

Product:Bottle of cider
Volume: 1 litre
Strength (% abv): 4.5
Duty: £0.33

Duty + VAT: £0.40

Product: Bottle of wine
Volume: 750 ml
Strength (% abv): 12.5
Duty: £1.69

Duty + VAT: £2.03

Product: Bottle of whisky
Volume: 700 ml

Strength (% abv): 40
Duty: £6.66

Duty + VAT: £8.00

Product; Bottle of vodka
Volume: 1 litre

Strength (% abv): 37.5
Duty: £8.93

Duty + VAT. £10.71

Page 67
Page 33 of 45



Crackdown on availability of cheap alcohol - GOV.UK Page 3 of 3

3. For more information ring the Home Office press office on 020 7035 3535.

Published: 18 January 2011

From: Home Office (https://Awww.gov.uk/government/organisations/fhome-office) The Rt Hon James
Brokenshire MP (https:/Awww.gov.uk/government/people/james-brokenshire)

Part of. Alcohol sales and misuse (https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/alcohol-sales)

Page 68
Page 34 of 45



LPINJSV

4
LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
RICHARD IVORY, Solicitor,
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership

Southampton City Council Please address all correspondence to: SOUTHAMPTO
Civic Centre Licensing — Southampton City Council, CITY COUNCIL &
Southampton SO14 7LY PO Box 1767, Southampton SO18 9LA
Direct dial: E-mail: licensing@southampton.gov.uk
Qur ref: Please ask for. Licensing

Dear SirfMadam,

IMPORTANT — KEEP THIS LETTER WITH YOUR LICENCE OR CERTIFICATE

Dear Sir or Madam,
LICENSING ACT 2003 - CHANGES TO MANDATORY CONDITIONS

You will be aware that the Government has powers to prescribe up to nine additional mandatory conditions for
premises licences and club premises certificates, in addition to the three mandatory licence conditions relating
to designated premises supervisors, fiims and door supervisors set out in the Licensing Act 2003.

With effect from 28 May 2014, the Home Secretary has imposed an additional mandatory condition prohibiting
the sale of alcohol at a price below the total of duty plus VAT.

Set out overleaf are all the additional mandatory conditions to which premises licences or club premises
certificate may be subject, whether or not they appear on your current licence or certificate:

The Licensing Authority, the Police and Trading Standards recommend that a policy under condition 4 (Age
Verification) should be in accordance with the well-established Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 procedures.
Acceptable forms of identification are a PASS accredited ID card, passport, photo card driving licence or
national ID card.

When it is necessary to reissue a licence or certificate, the appropriate mandatory conditions will be included
on that document. You must keep this letter with your licence or certificate for reference.

If you wish the conditions to be shown on your current licence or certificate now, you can return both parts of
the licence or certificate to us, together with the fee of £10.50, for an updated licence to be issued.

Further information, including links to the legislation, the revised Licensing Act 2003 Statutoery Guidance and

Home Office guidance on these mandatory conditions is available on the City Council’s web site at
www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing - please follow the link to Alcohol and Entertainment. A calculator for

the duty and VAT is available on the web page.

Please note that the section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 makes non-compliance with these mandatory
conditions an offence punishable, on summary conviction, by imprisonment for a term not exceeding six
months or a fine not exceeding £20,000, or both.

You may wish to take advice on these responsibilities from your own independent legal adviser.
For the purposes of the mandatory conditions, unless otherwise defined:
* ‘relevant premises” means either licensed premises or premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate

» ‘“responsible person” means, in relation to licensed premises, the holder of a premises licence, the
designated premises supervisor, or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by such a holder
or supervisor, and, in relation to ciub premises certificates, any member or officer of the club present on

the premises in a capacity which enables him to prevent the supply in question.
Yours faithfiillv

Licensing Manager
for Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Page 69
Page 35 of 45



(1)
(2)

Irresponsible promotions - from 6 April 2010 - on sales/supply only

The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not

carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

in this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol

for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing
to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children—

(a) games or other acfivities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to
the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or
discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption af a table meal, as
defined in section 159 of the Act);

(c} provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting
event, where that provision is dependent on—

)] the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or

(if) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity
of, the premnises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

2.

Alcohol dispensed directly into the mouth - from 6 April 2010 - on sales/supply only

The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

3. Free tap water for customers - from 6 April 2010 - on sales/supply only

The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is

reasonably available.

4. Age verification policy - from 1 October 2010 - on and off sales/supply

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age
(or such older age as may be specified in the policy) fo produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

5. Cholce of small measures - from 1 October 2010 - on sales/supply only

The responsible person shall ensure that-

(a)

(b)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for cocnsumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a
securely closed container) it is available to customers in the folfowing measures—

(i} beer or cider: )z pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 mi or 35 ml; and

(iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 mi; and

customers are made aware of the availabilify of these measures.

Page 70
Page 36 of 45



Alcohol minimum permitted price - from 28 May 2014 - on and off sales/supply

A relevant person shall ensure that no aicohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the pemmitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —

(a)
(b)

“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liauor Duties Act 1979;
"permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(MDxV)

where—

(c)

(@)

(e)

(0 P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iif) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

‘relevant person” means, in refation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises

licence —

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

‘relevant person” means, in relation fo premises in respect of which there is in force a club

premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity

which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply ir question; and

‘value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act

1994,

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not
be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shail be taken to be the price
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest per:y.

(1)

(2

Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on
a day (‘the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second
day’) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 71
Page 37 of 45



Anver 5)

LICENSING TEAM
Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership

=,

Southampton City Council Please address all correspondence to: i

Civic Centre Licensing — Southampton City Council, smTw
Southampton SO14 7LY PO Box 1767, Southampton SO18 9LA CITYCOUNCIL
Direct dial: 023 8083 3002 E-mail; licensing@southampton.gov.uk

Cur ref: [premises reference] Please ask for: Liceng;:ng

To premises licence holders — off licences

November 2016

IMPORTANT — THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER MAY AFFECT YOUR BUSINESS

Dear Sir or Madam,
LICENSING ACT 2003 — MINIMUM PRICING AND TEST PURCHASING

As you will be aware, the conditions of your licence to sell alcohol include requirements, amongst others,
that you do not sell or supply alcohol below the minimum permitted price and that you have an age
verification policy in place to ensure that alcohol is not sold or supplied to anyone under the age of 18. It
is also an offence to keep smuggled goods of any description on licensed premises.

Recent test purchase operations by Trading Standards and Hampshire Constabulary have revealed a
number of premises where alcohol has been sold to persons under the age of 18 and smuggled alcohol
has been sold below the minimum legal price for that product. If you are able to purchase alcohol for less
than the total of duty plus VAT, it is likely to be non-duty paid, smuggled goods.

Such aleohol also has a disproportionately high negative impact on public health and public order
problems, including street drinkers.
This has resulted, so far, in a premises licence being revoked on review by the Licensing Committee.

The Licensing Act 2003 provides for maximum penalties as follows:

« Sale or supply of alcohol to or for a person under 18:  unlimited fine
e Sale or supply of alcohol below the minimum price: unlimited fine and/or six months' imprisonment

» Keeping smuggled goods on licensed premises: £1000 fine

In addition, licences of premises where such offences are discovered are likely to be reviewed,
potentially resulting in their revocation. Home Office Guidance makes it clear, in particular, that the sale
of smuggled goods from and other criminal activity at licensed premises is particularly serious and that
revocation of the licence should be seriously considered on the first occurrence.

Trading Standards and Hampshire Constabulary will be carrying out further test purchase operations in
the future, and intend, where appropriate, to bring reviews of licences if offences are found.

A copy of this letter is being sent all holders of premises licences where alcohol is restricted to its sale for
consumption off the premises.

Further information, including a calculator to give indicative minimum prices for alcohol is available at
www.southampton.gov.uk/premlic

On the reverse of this letter you will find the text of the mandatory licence conditions which apply to your
business.

Yours faithfully,

Licensing Manager

SCC - Off Licences re pricing 201611

] Page 72 "
Switchboard: 023 8083 3002 Page 38 of 45 www.southampton.gov.ukflicensing



MANDATORY CONDITIONS

Age verification policy - from 1 October 2014

(1)

(2)

(3)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificote holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
The policy must require individuals who appear to the respansible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

{a) @ holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Alcohol minimum permitted price - from 28 May 2014

1

-

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —

P=D+(DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol os if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii)  Vis the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol os if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there Is in force a
premises licence —

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii)  the personal licence hoilder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

{d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tox charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994,

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

{1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on
the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tox.

2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

SCC - Off Licences re pricing 201611

Switchboard: 023 8083 3002 Page 73 www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing

Page 39 of 45



ANN e~L3)

10.52

10.53

10.54

As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person
must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying
them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include
making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are
displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example,
at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of smalt
measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular
measure.

This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been
made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For
example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it
available in 1/2 pints does not apply.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff
are made aware of the application of this condition.

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises
supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes
or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a
club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the
alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a
percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the
date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a
calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home
Office website.

Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance,
following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects
the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate.

It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with
any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should
ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed
guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the

Gov.uk website.

Exhibition of films

10.59

10.60

The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the
licensing authority itself.

The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the

84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 74
Page 40 of 45



QNN exX A-)

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminai law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty Is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.
There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:
= for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
« for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
« for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected,;

- for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

+ by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

+ as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Revised Guidance Issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 91
Page 75
Page 41 of 45



- for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

» for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

+ for unlawful gambling; and
&" « for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 Itis envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the
Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run concurrently and are as follows:

« when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received,

+ the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

* notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing}.

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.30 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the paint of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
Page 76

Page 42 of 45



ﬂgnt‘L 5')

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to

11.14

11.15

review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’'s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16

iar

11.18

11.19

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued In writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
- that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 89
Page 77
Page 43 of 45



Annex 6)

High strength alcohol products
No beers, ciders or lager of 6.5%ABV or over shall be sold by retail.

Page 78
Page 44 of 45



Heather Munday
24A Bond Road
Bitterne Park
Southampton
S018 1L.Q

Phone :++
Email:

Licencing Team

So’ton and Eastleigh Licencing Partnership
Southampton City Council

PO BOX 1767

Southampton

SO18 SLA

06/01/17
Ref: Licence review of London Off Licence, 27 St Catherine's Rd, Southampton SO18 1LL

Dear Sirs,

I have been an occasional customer at London Off Licence on St. Catherines Road for over 4 years.
I live under 100 yards away on Bond Road.

The London Off Licence Southampton is within my line of sight. I have never observed no anti-
social behaviour eminating from this shop.

I have never experienced any disturbance arising s a result of the in question shop being there.
However abused and nearly mugged as a result of TESCO trading nearby, whilst the London Off
licence shop was shut.

This situation has arisen because of TESCO being allowed to remain open for longer and the
impersonal service and frequent turnover of staff serving unsavoury people without proper vetting.
I have to walk past TESCO about once a week at about 11.30 pm.

1 get 38 pounds of state pension a week and live below the bread line. The shop under review has
helped me out raany times. The people running it are very nice and helpful. I have witnessed only
once that a patron was turned away, because of foul language. There are no problems arising from
the shop at all. The shop serves the community and has done so with nothing but merit for years.
Please could You not close one of the last bastions of the family run smail business in favour of
Tesco’s.

Regards,

Heather A. Munday

Received
On

7 APR 2017

Southampton & .
Eastleigh Licensing Partnership

Page 79
Page 45 of 45



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	7 APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - TONY'S KEBAB CENTRE, SITE AT SPEEDWELL HOUSE, WEST QUAY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 1GZ
	8 APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE - BITTERNE EXPRESS, 27 ST. CATHERINES ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO18 1LL



